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Defendants Power Ventures, Inc. and Steve Vachani (hereafter collectively referred to as
“Defendants” or “Power”) hereby answer the First Amended Complaint (*Complaint”) filed by
Plaintiff Facebook, Inc. (“Facebook™).

I. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

Power believes in a borderless Internet where users have the right to own and control their
own data. Indeed, Power recently published an Internet User Bill of Rights detailing three
fundamental rights of Internet users that must be protected — rights to ownership, control and

privacy. Power’s Internet User Bill of Rights details these three fundamental rights as follows:

Ownership

The right to complete and total ownership of their content—
including profiles, messages, media, contacts and all other
data.

Control

The right to access, disseminate, transfer or aggregate their
content on any platform, or to authorize third-parties to do so
for them.

Privacy

The right to protect their content and personal information from
other users and corporate entities alike.

Power’s core mission is to protect and to defend these rights and to provide users with the tools
they need to exercise them. Facebook, on the other hand, has attempted to thwart its users’ ability
to exercise these rights with respect to their own data.

The bulk of the Facebook site is comprised of “User Content.” This “User Content”
includes “photos, profiles, messages, notes, text, information, music, video, advertisements,
listings, and other content that [users] upload, publish or display” on the Facebook site. This data
is not owned by Facebook. It is owned by the user. Although users’ ownership of their own data
seems self-evident, and it has been one of our core principles since Power was founded, Facebook
historically has been criticized for not respecting its users’ rights to ownership of their own content
—and that is the crux of the dispute. Facebook is attempting to prevent Power from providing tools

to Internet users that allow those users to exercise ownership and control over their own data.
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Facebook is also attempting to stifle the development of Power’s innovative new technologies that
will liberate Internet users from proprietary restrictions that prevent them from controlling access

to their own data.

A Facebook’s Allegation That Power.com Has Made
“Unauthorized” Use Of Users’ Login Passwords Is False And
Frivolous

One example of Facebook improperly restricting their users’ ownership and control of their
own data is Facebook’s purported “security measure” of prohibiting users from providing their
own username and password to third parties, such as Power. This purported “security measure” is
discussed at paragraph 3 of Facebook’s complaint. But this is not a “security measure” at all. The
entry of usernames and passwords to access a website through a third-party site poses no threat to
security. On the contrary, it is commonplace in the industry. Indeed, it is a practice that Facebook
itself employs on its own site to allow its users to access other websites through Facebook. For

example, below is a screen capture from http://www.facebook.com/gettingstarted.php?

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3
Find Friends Profile Information Join a Metwork

Find friends using your email account

Searching your email account is the fastest and most effective way to find vour
friends on Faceb ook,

Your Email: amall@gmail.com Valid webmail

Passwordk adeiress

Wha WoNn'T STore wour password of contact anyens without
YOUE permission,

Find people you Instant Message

Skip this step
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On this page, Facebook solicits users to enter their account names and passwords for users’
email accounts at Google’s Gmail, AOL, Yahoo, Hotmail, or other third party websites. Facebook
then uses the account information to allow the user to access those accounts through Facebook, and
to import information — i.e., to “scrape” data — from those third-party sites into Facebook. This
practice fueled Facebook’s growth by allowing Facebook to add millions of new users, and to
provide users with convenient tools to encourage their friends and contacts to join Facebook as
well.

Facebook seeks to stifle competitors from using the same type of utility. Facebook’s
purported “security measure” — prohibiting Facebook users from logging into Facebook through
third-party sites, such as Power.com — unduly restricts users’ ability to access their own data. It
thwarts the development of innovative technologies, platforms, and applications that users might
wish to use, such as those offered by Power.com.

In this lawsuit Facebook alleges that Power has made “unauthorized” use of Facebook
users’ login credentials (usernames and passwords). See Complaint § 50 (“In order for a visitor to
integrate a Facebook account into Power.com’s website, Power.com requires that users provide it
with their Facebook username and password.”). Power permits users to enter their account
information to access the Facebook site through Power.com, just as Facebook does with respect to
other sites. This isa common industry practice. Is not “unauthorized.” It is clearly authorized by
the user who enters his own account information. Facebook’s complaint does not identify a single
instance of “unauthorized” use of a username or password. Nor does Facebook’s complaint
identify a single instance in which anyone’s account security was compromised by Power in any
way. As we point out above, users’ right to security of their data is one of the three fundamental
principles underlying Power’s Internet User Bill of Rights. Power has taken every appropriate

measure to protect that security.
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B. Facebook’s Allegation That Power.com Has Sent Unsolicited
Commercial Messages To Facebook’s Users Is False; In Fact,
Facebook Itself Sent The “Unsolicited Message” Referenced In

The Complaint

Facebook’s complaint alleges that Power sent “unsolicited” email messages to Facebook

users which were “deceptive and misleading.” See Complaint § 65-73. That allegation is false.

Power did not send the email message referenced in the complaint. Facebook did.

Facebook allows users to create “events,” which Facebook then invites friends to attend.

The screen captures from www.facebook.com below illustrates the event creation process.

,ff Facebook | Create an Event - Windows Internet Explorer

@?-: - IE hkkp ffenena, Facebook, comfhome  php?ref=home# feditevent. php
e ok 3 Facebook | Create an Event

facaljuuk Home  Profile  Friends

] Create an Event

5 - EEEEE

ﬂ | X IGoogIe
| i -
St oo

Advertise

Ewent Name:
(required)

Tagline:

Host:

Mew Event created 24/04/2009

eg: "One night only” o "Because she'l only turn 21 once..."

Internet

Moeda Transaccdo
Online

(required) easy | h_f_crex
G E e ra— -
S e grands opartunidade para =
Description: = Aproveite §& a oportunidade
Forex,
.-
Start Time: Inprwl vl 24 * D at |10 =] |00 x| |pm *
End Time: Inprwl vl 25 * D ak |1 ol :IUU vl Iam vl wuiﬁng for?
(reauved Anything's
Street: Possible.
City,/Town: Keep
Thinking.
Phone:
Email: le[NTNUW,nR'
Create Event Cancel
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/2 Facebook | Invite people to New Event created Z4,/04,2009 - Windows Internet Explorer 18] x|
(& ﬁ http:j v facebook,comjeditevent. php?picturetsid=762521 386668 createdinewam=14editevent php?guest stnewsm=28eid=762521 38666 =li#l x| IGuugle | 2|~
. »

9% & [ Facehook | Invite paople to New Event crasted 24(04,.. J - i - fmh » b Page » () Took -

facebook  Home Profle  Friends Inbox (8 3 =

[ Invite people to New Event created 24,/04,/2009

Advertise

Quer Ganhar Dinheiro ?

Invite Friends Pramate Event with an Ad
Select friends o invite by dicking on their picture below

Find Friends: | Start Typing a Friend's Mame

Ganhe dinheiro
Fiter Friends v PN selected (3) respondendo a

pesquisas online.
Cadastro grétis!

What are you
waiting for?

Anything’s
Possible.

Inuite Dacnla uia Email 9 tnnet Frsil Addrscess

K3 Applications 12 ma 5 =] ; At Online Friends (1) [? 1e &l

Done [T [ [ @ mkemet | Protected Made: On [#oowe - 4

After the user has created the event and selected the friends to be invited, Facebook then sends the

invitations by email:

Gomfie Gl g 2 [e [ ]|
G~ [0 rwiinet o [~ [CES ol
UG (e e e X T Terva - Ntk vibe, e B e B oo e ke s O tek s T
Ot Gmell Agenda Docs Fotos Wieh mas v —2pmall.com | Corfiguragiies | Morsda maid antion | Ada | Sair

s Mioas ansles &

Gmail P | S s

HFQ Oning - Frarfic INFO - Allg-Salanten Jikrmw unam We-Fi @ Hluetooth - 2 horan atmn

Estrever ¢-mall
Wi agiea¥

1 de 556 Antoriones

Etenen P W invited you to the event "New Event created 24/104/2009"...  Sxss de s X ﬁ :.I::-‘:T ;a
E-mmls srador O MEOmt i
S Facabook para mim mesiar detabes 17-25 (5 minutos stris) 4 Respondes | ¥
e 2 Links patrocinados
Todes 08 e-mails Brung imited you to "New Event created 2404/2009" today.
Soam (71 Revenda de Hospedagem
2 Everil. ew Evenl created 240472009 Hospede Dominios Dos Seus Clientes
L What: Ccidail Paty ©J Evtnsgura Complats Vs Plansal
Contales Hogt: imama e FeduHost com be
Stait Time: Todsy, Ageil 24 at 10.00pm
o End Tims: Temaimew, Apl 25 at 100am Deminie. cam RS 580
Whars: intamat Regretie o seu Domine niweb &
Procure, inthua, comide tenha & SeuSite.com. Appnas RE5.90.
To aoe more details and REVP, fllow the fink below ww LIOLHOST com beiRegestro-
i s P sbo0i Comnevent oholaid= 6 1 16163001 Gt Gl Dominia
Tharks, Windows YP§ Hosting
The Faceback Team 1 Manth FREE - Tripho the BW

Trigha the RAM & Tripla the Spacs
weww. curinternet s Windows_VPS

fram Facebook? Go to:

Thiss massage was iftended fof tyagopower@gmail.com. Want i control
facs i R g RIgVe Logse Cubic Zirsenia

loose cubwe nircoma, lab created

simulated. hoarts & amows, & aaa

wnw BangkoknamEtons £om

Convorse cam a cara
Expenmente o bule-pap:
ot vided

BT Adicensr comaio
o[ Homastay families 3cross Austraia
* Responder —* Encaminhar available for long or short stays
Etar mvagares ww WordvadeHomastay com
= Comade um amigs =
- \Paned de cortrol en Espadicl
Erniar comite do Gmad Cpanal, Fantastico, y SitsStudio
| i * www hostito com
| Evvae swtrme] 50 reasactmin) Sobee oules bnks
wanizar canvte Vol Cai i v apam | Exchir owerparse  Marcadocesy Mais aglesy 1 de 556 Amierlores
Pesquise na internet com a mesma lachdade que vock pesquisa seus e-mals — bame a Boar 13 1 com bloquesdor de pop-ups. B
Dorm & et LY
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This email is sent by Facebook. Facebook determines the address that appears in the “From:” field
See Complaint § 68 (“From: Facebook<eventmaster+zOs9a6jc@facebookmail.com>"). Facebook
also adds the closing signature from “The Facebook Team.” See Complaint § 69 (“The message ...
is signed by “The Facebook Team,” which is both misleading and false.”). Neither the user nor
Power has any control over these elements of the email message. All content in these email
messages that Facebook alleges to be misleading and false was written and appended to the
message by Facebook itself.

Notably, Facebook’s complaint is devoid of any allegation that any user was actually
misled by any of these messages. Facebook’s pleading is also devoid of any allegation that any
user, or any recipient of such messages, has complained about the contact or about the message
being unsolicited. Facebook’s allegations concerning these “unsolicited” emails are trumped-up
and frivolous. As Facebook well knows, Facebook itself was the source of these messages. And
Facebook was the source of every element that Facebook contends is false or misleading. Every
email referenced in Complaint { 65-73 was generated and transmitted by Facebook as a result of a

conscious action taken by users.

C. Facebook’s Allegations That Power.com Has Violated
Facebook’s Intellectual Property Rights Are Frivolous

Power.com believes strongly in intellectual property rights, including the right of users to
own and to control their own data. That is the intellectual property of the user. Facebook does not
own that intellectual property. The users do.

Facebook’s complaint broadly alleges that Power.com has violated Facebook’s rights by
copying the Facebook website. But the complaint does not identify either the copyrighted work or
the allegedly infringing work. It refers generically to ‘Facebook’s website,” but does not identify
any portion of the website, any graphics or text, or any computer program that is alleged to have
been copied ‘and/or’ the source for a derivative work. See Complaint § 125. The complaint also
refers generically to “copies and/or derivative works created by Defendants,” id. { 127, but it does
not identify the “copies and/or derivative works” in any intelligible way. This is probably the most

vague allegation of copyright infringement that has ever been filed.
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The Facebook website is massive. It includes many different elements — some of which are
subject to copyrights owned by Facebook and some of which clearly are not. The bulk of the
Facebook site is comprised of “User Content.” This “User Content” includes “photos, profiles,
messages, notes, text, information, music, video, advertisements, listings, and other content that
[users] upload, publish or display” on the Facebook site. See Facebook Terms of Use (rev. Sept.

23, 2008), available at http://www.facebook.com/terms.php. Facebook owns no copyright to such

User Content. Indeed, Facebook’s own Terms of Use expressly state that “Facebook does not
assert any ownership over your User Content.” Id. The Facebook site also contains “articles,
photographs, text, graphics, pictures, designs, music, sound, video, information applications,
software and other content or items belonging to or originating from third parties.” Id. (section
headed “Third Party Websites and Content”). Facebook does not own the copyrights to these third
party materials.

Power.com provides users with utilities that allow them to copy their own User Content for
purposes of updating it and making it portable to other sites — without copying other elements of
the Facebook website. The Complaint does not allege that Power.com has copied any element of
the Facebook site that is subject to a copyright owned by Facebook.

The applicable copyright statute, 17 U.S.C. § 512, requires a notification of copyright
infringement to include “[i]dentification of the copyrighted work claimed to have been infringed,
or, if multiple copyrighted works at a single online site are covered by a single notification, a
representative list of such works at that site.” 17 U.S.C. 8 512(c)(3)(A)(ii). It also requires
“[i]dentification of the material that is claimed to be infringing or the subject of infringing
activity.” 1d. 8 512(c)(3)(A)(iii). Indeed, even Facebook’s own DMCA Notice of Copyright
Infringement, which it uses to address reports of potential copyright infringement on its own site,
requires this information. See Facebook DMCA Notice of Copyright Infringement, available at

http://www.facebook.com/copyright.php?copyright_notice=1 (“Identify the copyrighted work that

you claim has been infringed. ... Identify the content on our site that you claim infringes your

copyright. ... Where does the infringing content appear on our site? In almost all instances the
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best way to help us locate the content you are reporting is to provide us with the URL.”).
Facebook’s complaint does not include even the most basic information that it requires from its
own users in order to report copyright infringement.

Unable to identify any actual infringement of a copyright-protected element of its website,
Facebook has resorted to arguing that Power “created cached copies of the [Facebook] website.”
See Facebook’s 4/17/09 Opposition to Power’s Motion to Dismiss at 9:13-15. What that means is
that Facebook alleges that every time the Facebook website is displayed on a computer it is
“copied,” albeit momentarily, in the computer’s cached memory. This allegation of copying is
akin to charging the Dell company with copyright infringement whenever a user accesses the
Facebook website through a Dell computer; or charging the Lexmark company with copyright
infringement every time a user prints a page from the Facebook website on a Lexmark printer.
Furthermore, even if Facebook could premise a copyright claim on the ephemeral and momentary
copying of a website in a computer’s cached memory, such temporary and intermediate copying in
order to extract non-copyrighted elements — such as the User Content at issue here — falls squarely
within the fair use doctrine.

Il. GENERAL DENIAL

Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 8(b)(3), Defendants generally deny all allegations in the
complaint except those specifically admitted herein.

111. SPECIFIC DENIALS

1. Defendants deny the allegations in paragraph 1.

2. Defendants deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in 2, except that Defendants admit that Facebook operates a social networking
site.

3. Defendants deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in 3, except that Defendants deny that Facebook’s attempt to prohibit users

from sharing their login information is a “security measure.” Facebook solicits login information
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for third-party sites. This is a common industry practice. Facebook’s attempt to prohibit others
from doing the same is an illegal and anticompetitive practice.

4, Defendants deny knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth
of the allegations in { 4.

5. Defendants deny the allegations in { 5, except that Defendants admit that they

operate a website, www.power.com, which offers to integrate multiple social networking accounts

into a single experience on Power.com.

6. Defendants deny the allegations in { 6.
7. Defendants deny the allegations in { 7.
8. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the

allegations in 8.

0. Defendants deny the allegations in { 9.

10. Defendants deny the allegations in { 10, except that Defendants admit that Power
Ventures, Inc. is a corporation incorporated in the Cayman Islands, doing business in the State of
California.

11. Defendants deny the allegations in { 11, except that Defendants admit that VVachani
is CEO of Power.com.

12. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in  12.

13. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in  13.

14, No response needed.

15. The allegations of { 15 state conclusions of law to which no response is required.

16. The allegations of { 16 state conclusions of law to which no response is required.

17. The allegations of { 17 state conclusions of law to which no response is required.
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18. Defendants deny the allegations in { 18, except that Defendants admit that Power
permits users to enter their account information to access the Facebook site through Power.com,
just as Facebook does with respect to other sites. This is a practice common in the industry.

19. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in { 19.

20. Defendants admit the allegations in { 20.

21. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in { 21, except that Defendants admit that Facebook users register with a unique user
name and password.

22. Defendants admit the allegations in  22.

23. Defendants admit the allegations in { 23.

24. Defendants admit the allegations in { 24.

25. Defendants admit the allegations in { 25.

26. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in { 26.

27. Defendants deny the allegations in { 27.

28. Defendants deny the allegations in { 28, except that Defendants admit that Facebook
permits limited integration with third party websites through Facebook Connect.

29. Defendants admit the allegations in § 29, except that Defendants deny that the
Terms of Use attached as Exhibit A are current. Defendants also deny that certain of the terms of
use are legally enforceable.

30. Defendants admit that the allegations in § 30, except that Defendants deny that
certain of the terms of use are legally enforceable.

31. The allegations of { 31 state conclusions of law to which no response is required.

32. Defendants deny the allegations in { 32.

33. Defendants deny the allegations in { 33.
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34. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in  34.

35. Defendants deny the allegations in { 35.

36. Defendants deny the allegations in { 36.

37. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in  37.

38. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in { 38.

39. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in { 39.

40. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in 1 40.

41. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in { 41.

42. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in  42.

43. Defendants admit the allegations in  43.

44, Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in { 44.

45, Defendants deny the allegations in { 45, except that Defendants admit that Power
permits users to enter their account information to access the Facebook site through Power.com,
just as Facebook does with respect to other sites. This is a practice common in the industry.

46. Defendants deny the allegations in { 46, except that Defendants admit that VVachani
and other Power employees have registered for personal Facebook accounts.

47. Defendants deny the allegations in { 47.

48. Defendants deny the allegations in { 48.

49, Defendants admit the allegations in { 49.
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50. Defendants deny the allegations in { 50, except that Defendants admit that Power
permits users to enter their account information to access the Facebook site through Power.com,
just as Facebook does with respect to other sites. This is a practice common in the industry.

51. Defendants deny the allegations in { 51.

52. Defendants deny the allegations in { 52.

53. Defendants admit the allegations in  53.

54. Defendants deny the allegations in { 54.

55. Defendants deny the allegations in { 55.

56. Defendants deny the allegations in { 56.

57. Defendants deny the allegations in § 57, except that Defendants admit that Facebook
has communicated such claims to Mr. Vachani.

58. Defendants deny the allegations in { 58, except that Defendants admit that VVachani
offered to attempt to integrate Power.com with Facebook Connect.

59. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in  59.

60. Defendants deny the allegations in { 59, except that Defendants admit that VVachani
communicated concerns about Power’s ability to integrate Power.com with Facebook Connect on
the schedule that Facebook was demanding.

61. Defendants deny the allegations in { 61.

62. Defendants deny the allegations in { 62.

63. Defendants deny the allegations in § 63, except that Defendants admit that Facebook
implemented technical measures to block users from accessing Facebook through Power.com.

64. Defendants deny the allegations in { 64, except that Defendants admit that Power
provided users with tools necessary to access Facebook through Power.com.

65. Defendants admit the allegations in { 65.
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66. Defendants admit the allegations in § 66, except that Defendants deny that
Power.com sent unsolicited commercial emails, and Defendants deny that any of their conduct was
“unauthorized.” All of Defendants conduct was fully authorized by the users.

67. Defendants deny the allegations in { 67.

68. Defendants admit the allegations in § 68. In fact, Facebook sent the referenced
message, and it was Facebook that designated the message with an “@facebookmail.com” address.

69. Defendants deny the allegations in { 69, except that Defendants admit that the email
message purports to be “signed by ‘The Facebook Team.”” In fact, Facebook appended that
signature to the message.

70. Defendants admit the allegations in § 70, except that Defendants deny that the
message was “unsolicited.”

71. Defendants deny the allegations in § 71.

72. Defendants deny the allegations in { 72, except that Defendants admit that
Power.com’s offer of potential monetary compensation may have induced some Facebook users to
participate in Power’s launch program.

73. Defendants deny the allegations in { 73.

74. Defendants admit the allegations in § 74. Facebook has also “developed computer
software and other automated devices and programs to access and obtain information” from other
websites, as detailed above, for example. This is a common industry practice.

75. Defendants deny the allegations in { 75, except that Defendants admit that Power
creates temporary cached copies of the Facebook website in order to display it through the Power
browser. This is a standard practice used by all browsers. For example, the Microsoft company
also creates “cached copies” every time a user views the Facebook site through the Internet
Explorer browser. Similarly Google creates and stores “cached copies” of nearly every website on
the internet, including Facebook.com. (Other search engines do the same.) Power does not store

or retain these cached copies. Facebook has also accessed and copied third party websites
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(including but not limited to, creation of cached copies of the website) to develop, test, implement,

use and provide” Facebook’s services. This too is a common industry practice.

76.
77,
78.
79.
80.
81.
82.
83.
84.
85.
86.

87.

Defendants deny the allegations in { 76.
Defendants deny the allegations in  77.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 78.
Defendants deny the allegations in  79.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 80.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 81.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 82.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 83.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 84.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 85.

Defendants deny the allegations in { 86.

First Claim For Relief

Violation of Controlling The Assault of Non-Solicited
Pornography And Marketing (“CAN-SPAM”), 15 U.S.C. § 7701,
et seq.

Paragraph 87 simply refers back to the allegations of prior paragraphs. No further

response is required.

88.

Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the

allegations in { 88.

89.
90.
91.
92.
93.
94.
95.

The allegations of { 89 state conclusions of law to which no response is required.
The allegations of { 90 state conclusions of law to which no response is required.
Defendants deny the allegations in  91.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 92.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 93.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 94.

Defendants deny the allegations in { 95.

AMENDED ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIMS OF DEFENDANTS POWER VENTURES, INC.
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96.
97.
98.
99.

100.
101.
102.

103.

Defendants deny the allegations in { 96.
Defendants deny the allegations in  97.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 98.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 99.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 100.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 101.

Defendants deny the allegations in { 102.

Second Claim For Relief

Violation of The Computer Fraud And Abuse Act, 18 U.S.C.
§ 1030, et seq.

Paragraph 103 simply refers back to the allegations of prior paragraphs. No further

response is required.

104.
105.
106.
107.
108.
109.
110.
111.

112.

The allegations of { 104 state conclusions of law to which no response is required.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 105.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 106.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 107.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 108.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 109.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 110.

Defendants deny the allegations in { 111.

Third Claim For Relief

California Comprehensive Computer Data Access And Fraud
Act, California Penal Code § 502

Paragraph 112 simply refers back to the allegations of prior paragraphs. No further

response is required.

113.
114.
115.
116.

Defendants deny the allegations in { 113.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 114.
Defendants deny the allegations in { 115.

Defendants deny the allegations in { 116.
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117. Defendants deny the allegations in { 117.
118. Defendants deny the allegations in { 118.
119. Defendants deny the allegations in { 119.
120. Defendants deny the allegations in { 120.
121. Defendants deny the allegations in { 121.

Fourth Claim For Relief

Copyright Infringement (Direct Vicarious And Contributory)
17 U.S.C. 8101, et seq.

122. Paragraph 122 simply refers back to the allegations of prior paragraphs. No further
response is required.

123. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in  123.

124.  Defendants admit the allegations in { 124.

125. Defendants deny the allegations in { 125.

126. Defendants deny the allegations in { 126.

127. Defendants deny the allegations in { 127.

128. Defendants deny the allegations in { 128.

129. Defendants deny the allegations in { 129.

130. Defendants deny the allegations in { 130.

131. Defendants deny the allegations in { 131.

132. Defendants deny the allegations in { 132.

133. Defendants deny the allegations in { 133.

Fifth Claim For Relief

Violation Of The Digital Millennium Copyright Act (“DMCA”),
17 U.S.C. § 1201, et seq.

134. Paragraph 134 simply refers back to the allegations of prior paragraphs. No further
response is required.
135. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the

allegations in { 135.
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136. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in { 136.
137. Defendants deny the allegations in { 137.
138. Defendants deny the allegations in { 138.
139. Defendants deny the allegations in { 139.
140. Defendants deny the allegations in { 140.
141. Defendants deny the allegations in { 141.
142. Defendants deny the allegations in { 142.
143. Defendants deny the allegations in { 143.
144. Defendants deny the allegations in { 144.

Sixth Claim For Relief
Trademark Infringement, 15 U.S.C. 88 1114 and 1125(a)

145.  Paragraph 145 simply refers back to the allegations of prior paragraphs. No further
response is required.

146. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in  146.

147. Defendants deny the allegations in { 147.

148. Defendants deny the allegations in { 148.

149. Defendants deny the allegations in { 149.

150. Defendants deny the allegations in { 150.

151. Defendants deny the allegations in { 151.

152. Defendants deny the allegations in { 152.

153. Defendants deny the allegations in { 153.

Seventh Claim For Relief
Trademark Infringement Under California Law

154.  Paragraph 154 simply refers back to the allegations of prior paragraphs. No further

response is required.
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155. Defendants deny knowledge sufficient to form a belief as to the truth of the
allegations in { 155.
156. Defendants deny the allegations in { 156.

Eighth Claim For Relief

Unlawful, Unfair, And Fraudulent Competition Under California
Business & Professions Code § 17,200, et seq.

157.  Paragraph 157 simply refers back to the allegations of prior paragraphs. No further
response is required.

158. Defendants deny the allegations in { 158.

159. Defendants deny the allegations in { 159.

IV. AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

First Affirmative Defense
Fair Use, 17 U.S.C. § 107

161. Power.com provides users with utilities that allow them to copy their own User
Content for purposes of updating it and making it portable to other sites — without copying other
elements of the Facebook website.

162. The only allegation of copying by Facebook is the allegation that third parties —
Internet users — utilizing Power’s utilities have “created cached copies of the [Facebook] website.”
See Facebook’s 4/17/09 Opposition to Power’s Motion to Dismiss at 9:13-15. What that means is
that Facebook alleges that every time the Facebook website is displayed on a computer it is
“copied,” albeit momentarily, in the computer’s cached memory. That allegation of copying is
akin to charging the Dell company with copyright infringement whenever a user accesses the
Facebook website through a Dell computer; or charging the Lexmark company with copyright
infringement every time a user prints a page from the Facebook website on a Lexmark printer.
The Microsoft company also creates “cached copies” of the Facebook website every time a user
views the Facebook site through the Internet Explorer browser. Similarly Google creates and
stores “cached copies” of nearly every website on the internet, including Facebook.com. (Other

search engines do the same.)
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163. Even if Facebook could premise a copyright claim on the ephemeral and momentary
copying of a website in a computer’s cached memory, such temporary and intermediate copying in
order to extract non-copyrighted elements — such as the User Content at issue here — falls squarely
within the fair use doctrine.

164. The *“copying,” if any, constituted fair use under 17 U.S.C. § 107, and thus is not
copyright infringement. See, e.g., Sega v. Accolade, 977 F.2d 1510, 1514 (9th Cir. 1992) (holding
intermediate copying of copyrighted computer work to gain understanding of unprotected
functional elements was fair use); Sony v. Connectix, 203 F.3d 596, 608 (9" Cir. 2000) (holding
intermediate copying of BIOS that was necessary to access unprotected functional elements

constituted fair use).

Second Affirmative Defense
Copyright Misuse

165. Copyright misuse is a defense to copyright infringement. The copyright misuse
doctrine “forbids the use of the [copyright] to secure an exclusive right or limited monopoly not
granted by the [Copyright] Office and which is contrary to public policy to grant.” Altera Corp. v.
Clear Logic, Inc., 424 F.3d 1079, 1090 (9th Cir.2005). “The misuse defense prevents copyright
holders from leveraging their limited monopoly to allow them control of areas outside the

monopoly.” A & M Records v. Napster, Inc., 239 F.3d 1004, 1026 (9th Cir.2001).

166. The Facebook website is massive. It includes many different elements — some of
which are subject to copyrights owned by Facebook and some of which clearly are not. The bulk
of the Facebook site is comprised of “User Content.” This “User Content” includes “photos,
profiles, messages, notes, text, information, music, video, advertisements, listings, and other
content that [users] upload, publish or display” on the Facebook site. See Facebook Terms of Use

(rev. Sept. 23, 2008), available at http://www.facebook.com/terms.php. Facebook owns no

copyright to such User Content. Indeed, Facebook’s own Terms of Use expressly state that
“Facebook does not assert any ownership over your User Content.” Id. The Facebook site also

contains “articles, photographs, text, graphics, pictures, designs, music, sound, video, information
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applications, software and other content or items belonging to or originating from third parties.”
Id. (section headed “Third Party Websites and Content”). Facebook does not own the copyrights to
these third party materials.

167. Power.com provides users with utilities that allow them to copy their own User
Content for purposes of updating it and making it portable to other sites — without copying other
elements of the Facebook website. The Complaint does not allege that Power.com has copied any
element of the Facebook site that is subject to a copyright owned by Facebook.

168. Facebook has committed copyright misuse by attempting to use its copyright in the
Facebook website control areas outside of their copyright monopoly, such as by restricting users’
ability to access their own User Content, which is not within the limited monopoly granted by

Facebook’s copyright to the Facebook website.

Third Affirmative Defense
Additional Defenses

166. Defendants reserve the right to allege additional defenses as they become known

during discovery and to amend this Answer accordingly.

V. COUNTERCLAIMS

First Counterclaim

Unfair Competition In Violation Of
California Business & Professions Code 8§ 17200 Et Seq.
(Unfair Business Practices)

167. Defendants incorporate by reference all allegations of all prior paragraphs as though
fully set forth herein.

168. Facebook is subject to the Unfair Competition Law, Sections 17200 et seq. of the
California Business & Professions Code (the “UCL”). The UCL provides, in pertinent part:
“Unfair competition shall mean and include unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business practices and
unfair, deceptive, untrue or misleading advertising...”

169. Facebook violated the unfair business practices prong of the UCL (i) by committing
copyright misuse systematically and on a massive scale as described in { 165-168, (ii) by

soliciting internet users to provide their account names and passwords for users’ email and social
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networking accounts, such as Google’s Gmail, AOL, Yahoo, Hotmail, or other third party
websites, and running automated scripts on those third-party websites while simultaneously
prohibiting users from utilizing the same type of utilities to access their own user data when it is
stored on the Facebook site, and (iii) by engaging in a campaign of threats and intimidation against
competitors, including by threatening dozens of new entrants since 2006 with baseless intellectual

property claims to discourage market entry and to stifle competition from new entrants.

Second Counterclaim
Monopolization, 15 U.S.C. § 2

170. Defendants incorporate by reference all allegations of all prior paragraphs as though
fully set forth herein.

171. Facebook possesses market power in the market for social networking websites.

172.  The relevant market for social networking websites includes websites that allow
users to create personal profiles, manage contacts, and provide a variety of ways for users to
interact with contacts. The relevant geographic market is the United States. As of September
2009, the market share of the five largest social networking websites in the United States, ranked

by market share of U.S. visits, as reported by Experian Hitwise, was as follows:

Rank | Name Domain Market Share
1 Facebook www.facebook.com 58.59%
2 MySpace WWW.myspace.com 30.26%
3 Tagged www.tagged.com 2.38%
4 Twitter www.twitter.com 1.84%
5 myYearbook www.myYearbook.com 1.05%

See http://www.hitwise.com/us/press-center/press-releases/social-networking-sept-09/. In addition

to holding a dominant share of the U.S. market, “Facebook ... is well on its way to establishing
dominance in several parts of the world.” See Alex Salkever, “Facebook, aiming for global

domination, is gaining quickly in Asia,” Daily Finance (Nov. 16, 2009), available at
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http://www.dailyfinance.com/2009/11/16/facebook-aiming-for-global-domination-is-gaining-

quickly-in-as/print/.

173. Power.com is a competitor in the market for social networking websites.

174. Facebook has acquired and maintained market power through two devices:

Q) Facebook solicited (and continues to solicit) internet users to provide their
account names and passwords for users’ email and social networking accounts, such as Google’s
Gmail, AOL, Yahoo, Hotmail, or other third party websites. Facebook then uses the account
information to allow the user to access those accounts through Facebook, and to run automated
scripts to import their lists of friends and other contacts - i.e., to “scrape” data — from those third-
party sites into Facebook. This practice fueled Facebook’s growth by allowing Facebook to add
millions of new users, and to provide users with convenient tools to encourage their friends and
contacts to join Facebook as well. On information and belief it is estimated that at least
approximately 35% to 50% of Facebook’s “132 million active users” (Facebook Amended
Complaint, 1 2, Docket Entry No. 9), registered with Facebook as a result of an invitation
generated using this device.

2 Facebook simultaneously prohibited (and prohibits) users from using the
same type of utility to access their own user data when it is stored on the Facebook site. Thus,
Facebook prohibits users from logging into Facebook through third-party sites, such as Power.com,
and also restricts users from running automated scripts to retrieve their own user data from the
Facebook site.

175. Device (1) is commonplace in the industry. Many social networking web sites, and
other types of websites, permit users to access their accounts through third-party websites. For
example, as noted above, Google’s Gmail, AOL, Yahoo, Hotmail, MySpace, and many other
websites allow for such access. Device (2) is unique to Facebook. Defendant is aware of no
comparable website that at the same time solicits access to user accounts on third-party sites while

attempting to prohibit such access to user data stored on its own site.
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176. Facebook has also maintained its monopoly power by systematically threatening
new entrants, such as Power.com and others, who seek to attract users through the same device
(Device (1) described in f 174, above) that Facebook itself used to fuel its own growth. On
information and belief, for approximately the past 36 months, Facebook has threatened dozens of
new entrants since 2006 with baseless intellectual property claims, and has engaged in systematic
and widespread copyright misuse as described in {{ 165-168, above, to discourage market entry
and to stifle competition from new entrants.

177. Facebook’s efforts in this regard have been highly successful. Since Facebook
embarked on this campaign of intimidation, no new entrant has amassed a market share of more
than 2.38%. The only competitor with more than a 2.38% market share is MySpace, which was an
established market leader for years before Facebook rose to dominance. Through the predatory
conduct described herein, Facebook has reduced MySpace’s market share by more than half in the
past year, and has prevented any other entrant from garnering more than 2.38% of the market.

178. Facebook’s conduct constitutes monopolization of the market for social networking

website services in violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act.

Third Counterclaim
Attempted Monopolization, 15 U.S.C. § 2

179. Defendants incorporate by reference all allegations of all prior paragraphs as though
fully set forth herein.

180. The relevant market for social networking websites includes websites that allow
users to create personal profiles, manage contacts, and provide a variety of ways for users to
interact with contacts. The relevant geographic market is the United States. As of September
2009, the market share of the five largest social networking websites in the United States, ranked

by market share of U.S. visits, as reported by Experian Hitwise, was as follows:
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Rank | Name Domain Market Share
1 Facebook www.facebook.com 58.59%
2 MySpace WWW.myspace.com 30.26%
3 Tagged www.tagged.com 2.38%
4 Twitter www.twitter.com 1.84%
5 myYearbook www.myYearbook.com 1.05%

See http://mwww.hitwise.com/us/press-center/press-releases/social-networking-sept-09/. In addition

to holding a dominant share of the U.S. market, “Facebook ... is well on its way to establishing

dominance in several parts of the world.” See Alex Salkever, “Facebook, aiming for global

domination, is gaining quickly in Asia,” Nov. 16, 2009 Daily Finance, available at

http://www.dailyfinance.com/2009/11/16/facebook-aiming-for-global-domination-is-gaining-

quickly-in-as/print/.

181. Power.com is a competitor in the market for social networking websites.

182. Facebook has engaged in predatory and anticompetitive conduct, as follows:
(1)
account names and passwords for users’ email and social networking accounts, such as Google’s
Gmail, AOL, Yahoo, Hotmail, or other third party websites. Facebook then uses the account
information to allow the user to access those accounts through Facebook, and to run automated
scripts to import their lists of friends and other contacts — i.e., to “scrape” data — from those third-
party sites into Facebook. This practice fueled Facebook’s growth by allowing Facebook to add

millions of new users, and to provide users with convenient tools to encourage their friends and

Facebook solicited (and continues to solicit) internet users to provide their

contacts to join Facebook as well. On information and belief it is estimated that at least

approximately 35% to 50% of Facebook’s “132 million active users” (Facebook Amended

Complaint, 1 2, Docket Entry No. 9), registered with Facebook as a result of an invitation

generated using this device.

(2)

same type of utility to access their own user data when it is stored on the Facebook site. Thus,

Facebook simultaneously prohibited (and prohibits) users from using the
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Facebook prohibits users from logging into Facebook through third-party sites, such as Power.com,
and also restricts users from running automated scripts to retrieve their own user data from the
Facebook site. Device (1) is commonplace in the industry. Many social networking web sites, and
other types of websites, permit users to access their accounts through third-party websites. For
example, as noted above, Google’s Gmail, AOL, Yahoo, Hotmail, MySpace, and many other
websites allow for such access. Device (2) is unique to Facebook. Defendant is aware of no
comparable website that at the same time solicits access to user accounts on third-party sites while
attempting to prohibit such access to user data stored on its own site.

3) Facebook has threatened dozens of new entrants since 2006 with baseless
intellectual property claims, and has engaged in systematic and widespread copyright misuse as
described in 1 165-168, above, to discourage market entry and to stifle competition from new
entrants.

183. Facebook engaged in the conduct described at 1 183(1)-(3) with a specific intent to
monopolize the market for social networking websites.

184. Facebook has already achieved monopoly power, and/or there is a dangerous
probability that Facebook will achieve monopoly power, if the conduct described in { 183
continues unabated. Within a single year, from September 2008 through September 2009,
Facebook increased its market share nearly three-fold, from 19.94% to 58.59%, while no other
entrant has been able to garner more than a 2.38% share.

185. Facebook’s conduct constitutes an unlawful attempt to monopolize the market for
social networking website services in violation of Section 2 of the Sherman Act.

VI. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Defendants Power and Vachani pray for judgment as follows:

1. That plaintiffs take nothing by the Complaint, and that judgment be entered against
Plaintiffs and in favor of Power and Vachani;

2. That Power and Vachani be awarded costs of suit incurred in defending this action,

including reasonable attorneys’ fees;
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3. That Facebook be permanently enjoined from the unlawful and anticompetitive

practices identified herein;

4, That Power and Vachani be awarded monetary damages for the injuries caused by

Facebook’s unlawful and anticompetitive practices;

5. That such damages be tripled under 15 U.S.C. § 15(a);

6. That Power and Vachani be awarded reasonable attorneys’ fees, expenses and costs

associated with prosecuting their claims; and

7. For such further relief as this Court deems necessary, just or proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Defendants demand a trial by jury.

Dated: November 23, 2009

Respectfully submitted,

BRAMSON, PLUTZIK, MAHLER &
BIRKHAEUSER, LLP

By /sl

Alan R. Plutzik

Alan R. Plutzik (State Bar No. 77785)
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